
West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

December 28, 2017 

 
Present: Dick Beatty, Brett Myers, Win Johnson, Cathy Archibald, Mike Spackman, Martha Harrison, 

Peter Vollers, Deb Shearer, George Calver (VT Standard)  

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Dick Beatty called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – None 

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None 

4) Town Clerk/Treasurer’s Report – None  

5) Highway access application, Queen Victoria Road: Webster – Mike said he’s not keen on doing these 

in the middle of winter. Dick said a former owner of the property was given an access permit but it 

expired so the new owner is looking for a permit for the same access. Win asked if it will be a 

permanent access. Mike said yes; it will be a permanent residential access. Win asked if they need 

approval now. Dick said their start date is May 2018. Win suggested deferring consideration of the 

application until March. There was no objection.  

6) Request for use of town roads for bike race to benefit Food Shelf on August 26th – Peter Vollers was 

present to describe the event and the route, which is being moved to Reading and West Windsor from 

Suicide Six. There will be 500 riders. Win asked how people will be notified of the race. Peter said he 

puts signs out a week before the event. Regarding traffic control, Peter said the sheriff will cover the 

major intersections on Route 106. Mike asked how long the race takes. Peter said it starts at 9:00 AM 

and closes at 3:00 PM, although there could be a few stragglers. Dick asked if there will be volunteers 

at the intersections with Route 44 and the Brownsville-Hartland Road. Peter said he wasn’t planning 

to do that because the riders will be so spread out at that point and most of them are older, 

experienced riders who are good about following traffic rules. Win asked if the police and FAST 

Squad have been notified. Peter said he will notify them closer to the date of the event. Peter added 

that the event is insured by USA Cycling and they will issue a Certificate of Insurance naming West 

Windsor as an “also insured.” Win said the race would not be subject to the event ordinance. Brett 

asked about the number of people at the food stops. Peter said there will only be a few riders there at 

a time. Peter said it’s a well-known race that has been written up in Outside magazine and Sports 

Illustrated. Win moved to approve the use of West Windsor roads for the race to be held on 

August 26, 2018. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Peter said West Windsor 

is one of the few towns that appreciates what biking can do for a community and he thanked the 

Selectboard for that.  

7) Appeal of Selectboard decision to approve the 2018 Vermont 100 Race: Dugdale – Dick 

acknowledged receipt of a letter from the Dugdales and said it has been sent to Town Attorney Matt 

Birmingham for his advice. Brett asked about the sections of the Zoning Ordinance referenced in the 

letter. Martha said Section 2.3-3 covers the Rural Residential district and Section 7.2 contains 

definitions. Martha said they may be looking at “outdoor recreational use” as a conditional use in 

their district and then looking at the definition for that use. Dick said normally an applicant would get 

a zoning permit for a permanent structure or use and this event is one weekend per year. Win said 

there was no zoning permit issued for the event so he’s not sure where this argument is going. Win 

said we’ll have to wait to hear from Matt. Martha said she sent a copy of the letter to event organizer 

Amy Rusiecki.  

8) Highway Foreman’s report – Mike said they got through the weekend storms with minimal 

breakdowns. Mike added that he’s still working on pricing for the one-ton replacement. Mike said 

he’s talking with Tim Stone about getting lights in the mountain maintenance building now that it has 

electricity and he’s working with Glenn Seward on a temporary heat source. Mike said he’s waiting to 

hear from Butch Robbins about the ATV for the water system.  

9) Consider property donation offer – Dick noted that a half-acre property on Skyhawk Lane has been 

offered to the town. Martha said, according to Jason Booth, it would not be a useful site for a water 



reservoir but he wasn’t as clear about its potential usefulness as a well site. Win asked why a well 

would go there. Martha said the state could require us to have a plan to replace our well if it fails 

since it’s a single-source water system. Win asked if we would have other options. Martha said she 

doesn’t know what our options would be. Win said he doesn’t see any value in accepting the 

donation. Dick said he would recuse himself from any decision on the matter because he owns 

property right around the corner. Dick said he doesn’t know the assessed value of the property. 

Martha said according to the owner, it’s over-valued, the taxes are too high, and he hasn’t been 

successful in grieving the assessment. Dick said he doesn’t think we need to make a decision right 

away and added that he doesn’t think it’s a buildable lot. Martha said it’s a pre-existing small lot so it 

might be buildable if it were hooked up to public water and sewer. Win said he forwarded the 

information to Glenn Seward in case Ascutney Outdoors might be interested but he hasn’t heard back 

from him. Win asked how we make an informed judgement about the value of the property to the 

water system. Martha said she can talk with Jason about it again when he’s back from vacation. Win 

asked Dick about other wells in the area. Dick described the well that serves his property and several 

others and said the water is excellent.   

10) Consider authorizing signature of Pollution Control Grant Agreement – Martha said the agreement 

was set up for her to sign but there were several errors in it so she sent it back for corrections. If the 

Selectboard authorizes her, Martha said, she can sign it when she gets the revised version. Win 

suggested deferring action until the January 2nd meeting. Dick agreed. 

11) 2017 & 2018 Budget Review/Discussion – Highway: Cathy said she added an amount for uniforms. 

Given that we budgeted a deficit of $25,000 in the Highway Fund and we have a surplus of $33,000, 

Win suggested transferring and additional $58,000 to the Equipment Fund this year since we’re going 

to need to replace the grader in five or six years. Dick agreed that we’re going to need it. Mike had no 

objection. Cathy said she will check with John Mudgett to see if Tuesday’s payroll will affect the 

amount of the surplus. Mike said all the highway guys had 30 hours of overtime this past weekend. 

Win said if we get an answer from John tomorrow morning, then we’ll adjust the transfer amount 

accordingly and if we don’t, we can just transfer $50,000. Dick agreed. Brett had no objection. Town: 

Win said he doesn’t feel we’ve gotten a satisfactory response on the traffic ticket revenue. The 

Selectboard agreed to budget $0. Cathy said she added $5,000 for re-payment of the principal on the 

EC Fiber loan. Regarding the three organizations that have not requested a 2018 appropriation, the 

Selectboard agreed not to include them in the budget.  

12) Sign Town Clerk’s orders – Win moved to sign orders. Brett seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

13) Other Business – None  

14) Approve Minutes – Win moved to approve the minutes of December 11th, December 14th and 

December 18th. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

15) Executive Session – At 7:30 PM, Win moved to go into Executive Session to discuss a 

contractual matter and asked Mike Spackman to stay for the discussion. Brett seconded the 

motion, which passed unanimously. After discussion, Win moved to come out of Executive 

Session at 7:37 PM. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

16) Adjourn – Win moved to adjourn at 7:38 PM. Brett seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


